EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 6 OCTOBER 2021

Councillors Present: Graham Bridgman (Substitute) (In place of Richard Somner), Nassar Hunt (Substitute) (In place of Royce Longton), Tony Linden, Alan Macro (Vice-Chairman), Geoff Mayes, Graham Pask (Chairman) and Keith Woodhams

Also Present: Alice Attwood (Senior Planning Officer), Bob Dray (Development Control Team Leader), Christine Elsasser (Democratic Services Officer), Kim Maher (Solicitor) and Steven Wilson (Environmental Control Officer)

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Alan Law, Councillor Royce Longton, Councillor Ross Mackinnon and Councillor Richard Somner

PART I

19. Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2021 were approved as a true and correct record and signed by the Chairman.

20. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest received.

21. Schedule of Planning Applications

(1) Application No. & Parish: 21/01481/HOUSE - Oakingham House, Bere Court Road, Pangbourne

The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(1)) concerning Planning Application 21/01481/HOUSE in respect of Oakingham House, Bere Court Road, Pangbourne. Approval was sought for the conversion of the existing indoor swimming pool to create a kitchen, dining and family room with ancillary storage areas, it was also proposed, in a first floor extension above, to form two ensuite bedrooms with associated dressing areas and a covered balcony, and a single storey extension to the current outbuilding courtyard was proposed in order to create a gym.

Mr Bob Dray, Team Leader in Development Control, introduced the report to Members, which took account of all the relevant policy considerations and other material planning considerations. In conclusion the report detailed that the proposed extensions were acceptable and would not harm the character and appearance of the application site, its setting within the North Wessex Downs AONB, or the rural character of the locality. No material harm was anticipated to neighbouring amenity. It was therefore considered that the development was acceptable and conditional approval was justifiable; it was recommended that it be delegated to the Service Director (Development & Regulation) to grant planning permission.

In accordance with the Council's Constitution, Mr John Higgs, Parish Council representative and Mr Shaun Tanner, applicant/agent, addressed the Committee on this application.

Parish Council Representation:

Mr Higgs in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

- The application fell within the AONB, outside the settlement boundary of Pangbourne. The boundary marked on the location plan included a red line that appeared to mean that the land was reserved for equestrian use.
- The application was for a large and bulky building which would be prominent in the landscape. The previous application was approved having made note of the fact that much of the application was single storey which lessened the visual impact.
- The drawings were incomplete. There was no existing site plan and it was not clear whether what was being applied for was four separate buildings linked by a single roof, or the extension of the garage to include a gym.
- It would seem that two flats had been built in what were originally stables on the previous plans without permission.
- There was concern that access to the area of the extension for the gym was restricted. There could be a temptation to utilise the public footpath for access to the area of the courtyard for the construction of the gym. There was no "Design and Access" Statement attached to the application that would clarify the position. If the Council were minded to grant permission, it would need to ask for a condition that required the Public Footpath PANG/13/3 be kept clear of contractors vehicles at all times and for reinstatement to be required if appropriate.

Member Questions to the Parish Council:

It was to be noted that in terms of the footpath there was a proposed condition in the report (informative two) dealing with that aspect. Also, as it was noted that there was a front gate, it was queried why was there concern that the footpath would be blocked. Mr Higgs stated that there had been some concern raised at a Parish Council meeting because it was not clear that access could be gained between the buildings within the site.

In terms of the boundary marked with a red line which was meant to be reserved for equestrian use, it was queried whether that line was simply the extent of land ownership and it was felt that the distinction between the formal garden area and the field was clear. Mr Higgs commented that there were problems within the Parish over residential curtilage and that agricultural land should not be taken into the boundaries of the garden.

Applicant/Agent Representation:

Mr Shaun Tanner in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

- In terms of the equestrian boundary, there had been no use of the land for equestrian purposes in over 27 years; therefore, he did not see the relevance to those concerns.
- The application was for the extension and alteration of the property following preapplication engagement with Council Planning Officers and suggested amendments were incorporated into the proposal.
- The dimensions of the proposed elements were concise and articulate, as set out in paragraph 1-3 of the committee report and the dwelling was located outside the settlement boundary of Pangbourne.
- Local plan policy C6 provided presumption in favour of extensions of existing dwellings subject to the development considered to be subservient to the original dwelling provided no adverse impact on setting and the use of material was appropriate. There was also no significant harm to the neighbourhood or the community from the development. Mr Tanner addressed the work he had done with the planners to ensure that the building would not encroach on the AONB.

 Materials were proposed to match existing where possible, materials would be salvaged where possible, there were no neighbours in close enough proximity to be affected by the proposal in terms of loss of light, loss of privacy or dominance and the Officer's recommendations were taken into account.

Member Questions to the Applicant/Agent:

Concern was raised over the introduction of dormer windows on the second floor and that it would introduce an aspect of overlooking. Mr Tanner explained that the dormers were inherent in that type of Italian design; they added a 3D dimension to the building and that they were subservient to the main roof.

Member Questions to the Officer:

A question was asked concerning the lack of information in the report about how much of the building size would increase, what the cumulative effect would be as well as the increases in the floor area and whether these increases in floor space were cumulative over the years or just on the latest plans? Mr Bob Dray explained that dimensions were given which was a percentage of the floor area and this was contained in paragraph 6.5 of the report. There was an increase in floor area on all 3 levels. In terms of whether the floor space was an accumulation, Mr Dray said the Planners believed it to be existing but were assessing it as subservient rather than disproportionate.

Another question was asked about the domestic curtilage and if that was what the red line on the plans indicated? Mr Bob Dray explained that the red line denoted the application site which was not necessarily the same as residential curtilage. An informative was included to make clear that there was not agreement that the whole red line was residential curtilage; therefore residential curtilage likely went around the formal gardens but not around the remainder of the land as there was nothing to suggest that was the case. There was confidence that the proposed extensions were within the residential curtilage.

A question was raised about whether it was useful to point out that the access of construction vehicles would be through the main entrance? Mr Bob Dray explained that as a matter of principle, conditions should only be applied that were necessary and often construction method statements covered parking and construction vehicles. As this property had reasonable access this was not a particular concern; however, if Members were concerned then it would be a reasonable thing to consider adding as a condition. The public footpath was an informative and not a condition because it was covered by separate legislation.

Debate:

Councillor Keith Woodhams said he felt it was a stunning design and brought the whole building to life. He felt there were no policy conflicts and accorded with the Officer recommendations. He therefore proposed the Officer's recommendations.

Councillor Tony Linden said he thought the building was in proportion to the development and he seconded the motion.

Councillor Graham Bridgman stated that he raised the dormer issue because it would make a distinct change to the roofline; the rest of the extension was however subservient to the main building but his concern was that the introduction to the structure to the flat roof line made a difference. However, he felt that the building in its entirety was acceptable.

The Chairman invited Members of the Committee to vote on the proposal by Councillor Woodhams, seconded by Councillor Linden, to grant planning permission. At the vote the motion was carried.

RESOLVED that the Service Director (Development and Regulation) be authorised to grant planning permission subject to the conditions listed below:

Conditions

1. Commencement of development

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

<u>Reason</u>: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

2. Approved plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans and documents listed below:

3747/100 (Location Plan), received on 26/05/2021

3747/101 (Existing Ground Floor Layout), received on 26/05/2021

3747/102 (Existing First and Second Floor Layouts), received on 26/05/2021

3747/103 (Existing Elevations), received on 26/05/2021

3747/201 Rev A (Proposed Ground Floor Layout), received on 26/05/2021

3747/202 Rev A (Proposed First and Second Floor Layouts), received on 26/05/2021

3747/203 (Proposed Elevations), received on 26/05/2021

3747/205 Rev A (Proposed Site Plan), received on 26/05/2021

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

3. Materials as specified / match

The materials to be used in the development hereby permitted shall be as specified on the plans and/or the application forms. Where stated that materials shall match the existing, those materials shall match those on the existing development in colour, size and texture.

Reason: To ensure that the external materials respond to local character. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006), and Supplementary Planning Guidance 04/2 House Extensions (July 2004).

4. Ancillary/incidental use

The gym extension hereby permitted to the existing outbuilding shall not be used at any time other than for purposes ancillary and/or incidental to the residential use of the dwelling known as Oakingham House. The development shall not be used as a separate dwelling unit, and no separate curtilage shall be created. It shall not be let, sold, occupied or disposed of separately from the main single unit of residential accommodation on the site.

Reason: To limit the future use of the building to prevent uses which would not be ancillary or incidental to the main dwelling. This condition is applied in the interests of preventing a change of use which would result in an unsustainable pattern of development, and detract from neighbouring and local amenity. This condition is applied in accordance with Policies ADPP1, ADPP5, CS13, CS14, CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, Policies C3 and C6 of the Housing Site Allocations DPD 2006-2026, WBC Quality Design SPD (2006), and WBC House Extensions SPG (2004).

Informatives

1. Residential curtilage

The applicant's attention is drawn to the fact that the Local Planning Authority does not necessarily accept that the red line plan accompanying the application accurately reflects the size of the lawful curtilage on site.

2. No obstruction of public right of way

The applicant is advised that this planning permission does not in any way allow the Public Right of Way to be obstructed at any time during the course of the development.

(2) Application No. & Parish: 21/00885/COMIND - Beenham Landfill Site, Grange Lane, Beenham, Reading

The Committee considered a report (Agenda 4 (2)) concerning Planning Application 21/0085/COMIND in respect of granting conditional planning permission for the temporary change of use of land to allow for the creation of a laydown facility for the storage of materials and light fabrication operations, including welding to support the construction of the SSE Slough Multifuel Combined Heat and Power Facility, and the permanent provision of fencing, lighting and areas of hardstanding to provide for the future use of the land for the permitted composting activities.

Ms Alice Attwood, Senior Planning Officer, introduced the report to Members, which took account of all the relevant policy considerations. In conclusion the report detailed that the proposal was acceptable in planning terms and officers were recommending that the Service Director (Development and Regulation) be authorised to grant approval, subject to the conditions outlined in the main report and update report.

In accordance with the Council's Constitution, Mr John Steele, Parish Council representative, Mr Philip Atkinson, applicant/agent and Councillor Dominic Boeck, Ward Member, addressed the Committee on this application.

Parish Council Representation:

Mr Steele in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

- Concerns were related to the potential disturbance arising from noise and light.
- Disagreement on the hours of operation should just be related to core activities and the lack of definition relating to enforceability of exceptions and reference to less noisy activity outside those core hours caused concern because he believed that the conditions needed to be enforceable and that no activities outside of those specified hours should be allowed.
- Evidence in Paragraph 6.42 of the report related to exceptional night time deliveries and when the noise impact was considered, it was concluded that there would be a low impact and therefore would not require mitigation. Therefore it was requested that hours be limited to Monday Friday and that noise be monitored.

• There were also increased concerns over the cumulative impact and the number of planning applications that had been submitted around the industrial estate; therefore, they wondered if a noise management plan could be developed for the area.

Applicant/Agent Representation:

Mr Philip Atkinson in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

- Grundon Waste Management was a long established and well known firm to the local area who employed 120 people from West Berkshire. The Officer's recommendations were noted and these had followed on from months of detailed negotiations and revisions to the proposals. It was also pleasing to note that the application had no objections from statutory consultees.
- This proposal was necessary to support the development of SSE's low carbon power generation plant and was why this proposal had become so time critical.
- The application was to temporarily change the use of the land and the economic development team had pointed to the clear economic benefit this proposal would bring to local and neighbouring businesses. It would also allow for investment in site infrastructure which would not otherwise be economically feasible and therefore the long term economic benefits were likely even greater than what were initially anticipated.

Mr Mark Lane in the addressing the Committee raised the following point:

 He stated that the report was well balanced and thorough and he was appreciative towards Officers for working diligently with him and members of his staff.

Member Questions to the Applicant/Agent

A question was raised around whether the temporary use until May 2024 would be sufficient if there were delays to the project? Mr Philip Atkinson explained that it was difficult to say as he was not building it but an extension would be applied for if necessary from Planning Officers. He further added that contractually they had a very specific target to meet and that if the contractor did not hit their target it would cost them money; therefore it was in the contractors' interest to get it delivered on time. Mr Mark Lane added that there was some slack built into the time frame so their programme envisaged completion before the end date and they were confident that it would be completed on time.

Another question was asked about the amount of electricity that would be generated by the Slough plant and if there would be electrical generator in this area as well? Mr Philip Atkinson confirmed that the temporary facility was not connected with this and that Grundon Waste Management generated electric using methane from the landfill.

The last question raised was if the told HGV journeys a day was 15 as stated in the report? Mr Mark Lane confirmed that the total was 30 if you counted arriving and departing as separate journeys.

Ward Member Representation

Councillor Dominic Boeck in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 He shared Mr. Steele's concerns and felt he had strong comprehensive statements which he supported. Those concerns were further echoed by residents who had lobbied his support in Padworth Parish Council and he urged Members to consider those statements that had been made.

Member Questions to the Ward Member

Members did not have any questions of clarification.

Member Questions to Officers

Questions were asked on what would happen to the site after 2024 and if the site could be further developed in terms of composting? How much of what was proposed would be permanent when considering that planning permission had already been granted for the composting site? Ms Alice Attwood explained that in terms of the extant permission there was already hard standing that could be put down at any time and it could be seen from the photos that planting was proposed as part of this. In terms of lighting, that was a matter of agreement reflected in the lighting condition which would likely be of better standard due to the guidance for lighting in AONB areas. The fencing was also under the extant permission and reflected in this application, and could be more built out.

Debate:

Councillor Bridgman noted that discussions had taken place about the green belt with references made to the AONB and in his view this site was at the other end of the AONB in that it was a former contaminated waste/ industrial site with industrial buildings in the distance. There were also no formal objections from what was referenced by the Parish Council. The question was how much more activity was this adding to the site and what was the impact in terms of noise and lighting. Hours of operation for both the building of the site and when it was operational needed careful consideration. In conclusion, he was minded to accept the Officer recommendation but wanted to hear what other Members had to say regarding hours in particular.

Councillor Macro noted that in the conclusion it was mentioned that the plan was finely balanced due to the economic development impact and benefits to the local day time economy in and around Aldermaston train station. There was only one business in that area which was a filling station; therefore Councillor Macro would not give much weight to the local economic impact and thought the wider economic benefit was for Slough. He also stated that if it was not for the extant permission he might not have been in favour of the application.

Councillor Linden asked for more guidance on the hours of operations. Councillor Graham Pask asked planning Officers to confirm what they saw as reasonable flexibility given the circumstances.

Mr Bob Dray explained that the hours proposed were based on those conditions contained in the noise report as a starting point. However, given the nature of the facility, and that it was providing a lay down facility on route to a construction site, timing could be an issue when those deliveries took place and there would be times when exceptions would be needed to those core hours. The difficulty was in finding a realistic provision and setting in place reasonable parameters whilst learning along the way and adopting some flexibility.

Councillor Pask said he understood what Mr Dray had said and that there was a requirement to differentiate between quiet activity and very noisy activity and that he had sympathy with concerns raised on this point.

Mr Bob Dray noted that within the report the conditions had been split up, with one covering operating hours for industrial processes or for the operation of machinery and a separate one for delivery hours. There could be various views on each. Therefore a firm answer was difficult because of the nature of the type of development and a solution with flexibility was required and if there were issues then requests could be rejected in future.

Councillor Bridgman stated that he had further concerns on 6.63 contained within the report as it stated that vehicles would arrive to site in the early hours and he wanted clarification on what site the report was referring to. He asked if noise monitoring, as requested by the Parish Council, could be considered.

Mr Dray explained that this reference in the report was to Slough and that it was understood to be occasional.

Ms Attwood added that it was looked at from the planning statement and further clarification had been requested on the working hours. She explained that there were six tests when you formed conditions; if conditions effected the deliverability of the actual development then it would not be considered a fair condition and could be open to an appeal; therefore it was necessary to find a compromise between the Parish Council's concerns and not stopping the deliverability of the development. There was a requirement to consult in writing if there was going to be work outside of set times and there would be continuous monitoring. Monitoring could be enhanced if there were complaints.

Mr Steve Wilson, Environmental Control Officer, explained that there were two sources in a 24 hour period. The noise coming off the A4 was not the worry but it was the noise generated by fabrication work and the nature of the work.

Councillor Bridgman asked if Mr Wilson could assist on how noise monitoring would be addressed. Mr Wilson stated that if there was a problem or a complaint in the normal course of events then Officers would go out to site and evaluate the situation to see if the situation warranted any enforcement action.

Councillor Geoff Mayes said that he thought there would be problems with getting equipment on site due to traffic and that lorries with heavy loads would further affect traffic on the M4 and A4. Therefore, it was not just noise on site but the noise from the road and whether large loads could be accommodated during rush hour periods. On timings, he felt that the Officers had the right balance on flexibility but perhaps needed to consider also the large loads on the roads.

Councillor Bridgman proposed acceptance of the Officer recommendation and this was seconded by Councillor Hunt. At the vote the motion was carried.

RESOLVED that the Head of Development and Planning be authorised to grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

1. Commencement of development. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

- 2. Approved plans Page 54 West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 6th October 2021. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans and documents listed below:
 - Application form received 30.03.2021
 - Location Plan titled Planning Application and Landownership Areas dated January 2021 drawing number DG/ES/BEE/StorageArea/02 received 27.04.2021.
 - Proposed Planting drawing number ARCMLl/B1/21/1 dated March 2021 received 30.03.2021
 - Proposed Floor Plan Cabin tilted Beenham Storage Area Cabin Layout drawing number DG/EN/BEE/WDL/2165 dated 19.04.2021 received 30.03.2021
 - Proposed elevation of Cabin tilted Beenham Storage Area Cabin elevation drawing number G/EN/BEE/WDL/2164 dated 19.04.2021 received 30.03.2021
 - Beenham Storage Area Palisade Fence Elevation dated 19/04/2021 Drawing Number DG/EN/BEE/WDL/2162 received 20.08.2021

- Beenham Storage Area Gates Elevation dated 19/04/2021 Drawing Number DG/EN/BEE/WDL/2161 received 20.08.2021
- Beenham Storage Area Cross Sections dated 06/08/21 Drawing Number DG/EN/BEE/WDL/2136-2 received 23.09.2021
- Amended Beenham Storage Area Layout dated 12/01/2021 Drawing Number DG/EN/BEE/WDL/2136 received 23.09.2021
- Noise Impact Assessment reference Delta-Simons Project No. 20-1698.02 received 30.03.2021
- Preliminary Geo-Environmental Risk Assessment (part 1, 2, 3, 4) received 30.03.2021
- Details within document Klargester BioTec Product data sheet received 30.03.2021
- Arboricultural Appraisal dated March 2021 received 30.03.2021
- Preliminary Ecological Appraisal Report received 30.03.2021
- Landscape and Visual Appraisal received 30.03.2021
- Planning Statement received 30.03.2021
- Amended Transport Statement received 08.07.2021
- Construction Environment Management Plan received 13.08.2021
- Letter from enzygo environmental consultants reference CRM.049.016.EC.R.020 received 13.09.2021
- Proposed HGV Parking Arrangement drawing number AMA/20886/ATR004 received 07.09.2021

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

- 3. Construction method statement No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement (CMS) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the demolition and construction works shall incorporate and be undertaken in accordance with the approved CMS. The CMS shall include measures for:
 - (a) A site set-up plan during the works;
 - (b) Parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
 - (c) Loading and unloading of plant and materials;
 - (d) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
 - (e) Erection and maintenance of security hoarding including any decorative displays and/or facilities for public viewing;
 - (f) Temporary access arrangements to the site, and any temporary hardstanding; Page 55 West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 6th October 2021
 - (g) Wheel washing facilities;
 - (h) Measures to control dust, dirt, noise, vibrations, odours, surface water runoff, and pests/vermin during construction;

- (i) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction works;
- (j) Hours of construction and demolition work;
- (k) Hours of deliveries and preferred haulage routes;

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers, and in the interests of highway safety. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies CS13 and CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, and Policies OVS.5, OVS.6 and TRANS.1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007). A precommencement condition is required because the CMS must be adhered to during all demolition and construction operations.

- 4. Construction Environmental Management Plan No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, vegetation clearance) until a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall include the following:
- (a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities.
- (b) Identification of "biodiversity protection zones".
- (c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method statements).
- (d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features.
- (e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on site to oversee works.
- (f) Responsible persons and lines of communication.
- (g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or similarly competent person.
- (h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs. The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To secure appropriate mitigation of ecological assets. A precommencement condition is required because the CEMP will need to be adhered to throughout construction.

5. Hours of work (construction/demolition) No demolition or construction works shall take place outside the following hours, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 7:30am to 6:00pm Mondays to Fridays; 8:30am to 1:00pm Saturdays; No work shall be carried out at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

<u>Reason</u>: To safeguard the amenities of adjoining land uses and occupiers. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

6. Construction delivery hours No deliveries shall be taken at or despatched from the site outside the following hours: Page 56 West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 6th October 2021 Mondays to Fridays: 07:30 to 18:30 Saturdays: 08:30 to 14:30 No deliveries shall be taken at or despatched from the site on Sundays and public holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

<u>Reason</u>: To safeguard the living conditions of surrounding occupiers. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy OVS.6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

7. Unexpected contamination. If any previously unidentified contaminated land is found during demolition and/or construction activities, it shall be reported immediately in writing to the Local Planning Authority (LPA). Appropriate investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken, and any necessary remediation measures shall be submitted and approved in writing by the LPA. These submissions shall be prepared by a competent person (a person with a recognised relevant qualification, sufficient experience in dealing with the type(s) of pollution or land instability, and membership of a relevant professional organisation), and conducted in accordance with current best practice. The remediation scheme shall ensure that, after remediation, as a minimum, the land shall not be capable of being determined as contaminated land under Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. Thereafter, any remediation measures shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA, the development shall not be first brought into use until any approved remediation measures have been completed and a verification report to demonstrate the effectiveness of the remediation has been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.

Reason: To ensure that any unexpected contamination encountered during the development is suitably assessed and dealt with, such that it does not pose an unacceptable risk to human health or the environment. This condition is applied in accordance with paragraphs 170, 178, 179 and 180 the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy OVS.5 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

- 8. Lighting strategy (temporary laydown facility) No external lighting shall be installed in relation to the temporary laydown facility until a lighting strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall:
- (a) Identify those areas on the site that are particularly sensitive for bats and that are likely to cause disturbance.
- (b) Show how and where external lighting will be installed so that it can be clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent the above species.
- (c) Include isolux contour diagram(s) of the proposed lighting.
- (d) Ensure all lighting levels are designed within the limitations of Environmental Lighting Zone 1, as described by the Institute of Lighting Engineers.
- (e) Include proposed times of operation, and other controls to minimise the operation of the lights.
- (f) Include calculations and methodology of calculations to demonstrate lighting levels are designed within the limitations of Environmental Lighting Zone 1. No external lighting shall be installed on the site in relation to the temporary laydown facility except in accordance with the approved strategy. Page 57 West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 6th October 2021

<u>Reason</u>: To ensure the conservation and enhancement of the biodiversity assets of the site, and to conserve the dark night skies of the North Wessex Downs AONB. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, the North Wessex Downs AONB Management Plan 2019-24, and Policies CS17 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

- 9. Lighting strategy (permanent) Prior to the cessation of the temporary use of the site as a laydown facility, a lighting strategy for the permanent retention of lighting in associated with the restored composting use of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall ensure the permanent amount and level of lighting is no more than is necessary to facilitate the restored compositing use. The strategy shall:
- (a) Identify those areas on the site that are particularly sensitive for bats and that are likely to cause disturbance.
- (b) Show how and where external lighting will be installed so that it can be clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent the above species.
- (c) Include isolux contour diagram(s) of the proposed lighting.
- (d) Ensure all lighting levels are designed within the limitations of Environmental Lighting Zone 1, as described by the Institute of Lighting Engineers.
- (e) Include proposed times of operation, and other controls to minimise the operation of the lights. Within three months of the cessation of the temporary use of the site as a laydown facility (or an alternative timescale agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority), any lighting associated with the lighting strategy for the temporary laydown facility shall be removed, altered or replaced to be in accordance with the permanent lighting strategy. Thereafter, no external lighting shall be installed on the site in relation to the restored composting use except in accordance with the approved permanent strategy.

<u>Reason</u>: To ensure the conservation and enhancement of the biodiversity assets of the site, and to conserve the dark night skies of the North Wessex Downs AONB. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, the North Wessex Downs AONB Management Plan 2019-24, and Policies CS17 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

10. Landscaping (approved plans) All soft landscaping works shall be completed in accordance with the approved soft landscaping scheme (ARCML/B1/21/1 dated March 2021.) within the first planting season following completion of building operations / first use of the temporary laydown facility (whichever occurs first). Any trees, shrubs, plants or hedges planted in accordance with the approved scheme which are removed, die, or become diseased or become seriously damaged within five years of completion of this completion of the approved soft landscaping scheme shall be replaced within the next planting season by trees, shrubs or hedges of a similar size and species to that originally approved.

<u>Reason</u>: Landscaping is an integral element of achieving high quality design. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and the Quality Design SPD.

11. Drainage The temporary laydown facility shall not be brought into first use until the drainage strategy has been implemented in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter Page 58 West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 6th October 2021 the drainage measures shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

<u>Reason</u>: To ensure the appropriate drainage of the site. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy, and the Council's adopted Sustainable Drainage SPD.

12. Use restriction. The site shall be used solely as either:

- (a) a temporary laydown facility associated with the construction of the Slough MCHP Facility, which was granted planning permission by Slough Borough Council on 2nd June 2017 (ref: P/00987/024), and for no other purpose, including any other purpose in Classes B8 or E of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) (or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification); or
- (b) For compositing activities permitted on the land under planning permission 10/00827/COMIND. This restriction shall apply notwithstanding any provisions in the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and reenacting that Order with or without modification).

<u>Reason</u>: The development has been justified on these specific uses, and any other uses may not be acceptable on the site. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies ADPP1, ADPP5, CS5, CS13, CS14, CS16 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and Policies OVS.5, OVS.6 and TRANS.1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

13. Operating hours (machinery/processes) During the operational phase of the temporary laydown facility, no machinery and/or industrial processes shall take place outside of the following hours, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority: Mondays to Fridays: 07:30 to 18:30 Saturdays: 08:30 to 14:30 No industrial processes shall take place on Sundays and public holidays, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

<u>Reason</u>: To safeguard the living conditions of surrounding occupiers. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy OVS.6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

14. Music No amplified or other music shall be played externally on the premises.

<u>Reason</u>: To safeguard the amenities of surrounding occupiers. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

15. Delivery hours During the operational phase of the temporary laydown facility, no deliveries shall be taken at or despatched from the site outside the following hours, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority: Page 59 West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 6th October 2021 Mondays to Fridays: 07:30 to 18:30 Saturdays: 08:30 to 14:30 No deliveries shall take place on Sundays and public holidays, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

<u>Reason</u>: To safeguard the living conditions of surrounding occupiers. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy OVS.6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

16. Permitted development restriction (fences) Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking, reenacting or modifying that Order), no gates, fences, walls or other means of enclosure (except those expressly authorised by this permission) that would otherwise be permitted by Schedule 2, Part 2, Class A of that Order shall be erected within the application site, without planning permission being granted by the Local Planning Authority on an application made for that purpose.

<u>Reason</u>: To prevent the inappropriate means of enclosure within the site in the interests of respecting the character and appearance of the surrounding area. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

17. Temporary permission (restoration). The temporary laydown facility use hereby permitted shall be for a limited time period ending on 31st May 2024. This temporary use shall be discontinued, and all paraphernalia and temporary operational development associated with this temporary use shall be removed from the site by this date. This requirement to remove temporary operational development does not apply to the permanent hardstanding and fencing hereby permitted, or any lighting permitted under the permanent lighting strategy pursuant to conditions.

<u>Reason</u>: The laydown facility is proposed for a temporary period. This condition is to ensure appropriate cessation and restoration of the land in accordance with the planning application proposals. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies ADPP1, ADPP5, CS5, CS9, CS10, CS13, CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

CHAIRMAN	
Date of Signature	

(The meeting commenced at 6.30pm and closed at 8.02pm)